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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 39" (Thirty-Ninth) Annual General Meeting('AGM’) of the members of
KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD (‘the Company’) will be held on Thursday,
August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. at the registered office of the Company at 1st Floor, Room No. 5, HM
Market, TR Phookan Road, Guwahati-781001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Chand Ratan Modi (DIN: 00343685), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh (DIN: 02033194) as an Independent Director of the Company for
a second term of 5 consecutive years.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 & 152 read with Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made thereunder, Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the
Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh (DIN: 02033194), for a second term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this AGM till the 44t AGM of the Company in respect
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, as an Independent Director of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation.”




4. Appointment of M/s. Mankani & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration Number -
S$2018UP613300) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 204 and 179(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed
thereunder, Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s), re-enactment thereof for time being in force) and circulars issued
thereunder from time to time, approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
the appointment of M/s. Mankani & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration Number -
S2018UP613300) as the Secretarial Auditors for the Company, to hold office for a term of five consecutive
years i.e. from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be mutually
agreed between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee of the Board, be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or
expedient in connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors,

e

Chand Ratan Modi
Managing Director
DIN: 00343685

Date: 16.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, in
respect of the Special Business to be transacted during the meeting is enclosed herewith and marked as
Annexure-l. The recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(11) of
the Listing Regulations is also provided in the said Statement.

The information as required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings (SS-2), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relating to the business
item No. 2 & 3 is enclosed herewith and marked as Annexure-|1.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the company. The proxy in order
to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the registered office
of the company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

In terms of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, a person can act as proxy
on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall
not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

Corporate members intending to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Section 113 of the Act, a duly certified true copy of the Board Resolution/ Power of Attorney
authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will
be entitled to vote.

The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register of
members / depositories as at closing hours of business, on July 25, 2025.

Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice / Email and holds
the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. August 21, 2025 are requested to send the email communication to the
Company at kficl17@gmail.com and to the RTA at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com by mentioning their Folio
No. /DP ID and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of
the Company as on the cut-off date i.e, August 21, 2025. A person who is not a member as on cut-off date
should treat this notice for information purpose only.

The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of August 21, 2025.
The facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio / client id, irrespective of the number of joint
holders.

. Members holding shares in physical form are advised to file nominations in form SH-13 in respect of their
shareholding in the Company, if not already registered and to submit the same to the R&TA. The nomination
form may be downloaded from the Company’s website: https://www.kficl.com/.

. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from August 22, 2025 to August 28, 2025 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.
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12. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section
170 of the Companies Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, shall be available for inspection by the Members during the AGM by
sending an email to kficl17@gmail.com.

All documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall also be available for inspection
without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e Thursday,
August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m.

Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an e-mail to kficl17@gmail.com mentioning their
names, PAN, folio numbers / demat account numbers and contact numbers.

13. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 and further circulars and
notification issued in the context matter by MCA, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is
being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also be available
on the Company's website https://www.kficl.com/ and in the websites of the Stock Exchange, i.e., the
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI).

. Any member desirous of obtaining hard copy of the said Notice along with the Annual Report for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 may send a request to the Company at kficl17@gmail.com, through his / her
registered e-mail address, mentioning his / her name, PAN, folio numbers / demat account numbers and
contact number.

. For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

a) Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their email address
with the Company are requested to register / update the same by writing to the Company with details of
folio number and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card at kficl17@gmail.com or to RTA at
nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their email addresses
with the relevant Depository Participant.

16. Members are requested to:

a) intimate to the Secretarial Department / Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent, Niche
Technologies Pvt. Ltd., changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address with PIN, e-mail
address, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN) details linked with
Aadhaar, signature, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the
bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc. in prescribed Form ISR-
1 and other forms (available on the Company's website at https://www kficl.com/ in terms of SEBI
Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 07, 2024 and SEBI Circular
No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024, in case of shares held in physical
form; and

intimate to the respective Depository Participant, changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal
address, e-mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN),
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch
details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., in case of shares held in dematerialized
form.




17. In accordance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-
PoD1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members in
respect of the shares held by them. Members are requested to submit the said details to RTA in case the
shares are held in physical form and to their respective DP in case the shares are held by them in
dematerialized form.

. Procedure for registration as speakers / seek clarification:

a) Members willing to express their views or ask questions during the AGM are required to register
themselves as speakers by sending their requests, preferably from Wednesday, August 20, 2025 (10:00
a.m. IST) to Monday, August 25, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST), at kficl17 @gmail.com from their registered e-mail
addresses, mentioning their names, folio numbers / demat account numbers, PAN details and mobile
numbers. Only those Members who have registered themselves as speakers will be allowed to express
their views / ask questions during the AGM. The Company / the Chairman of the Meeting reserves the
right to restrict the number of questions, time allotted and number of speakers to ensure smooth conduct
of the AGM.

Any Member desirous of receiving any information on the Financial Statements or Operations of the
Company is requested to forward his / her query(ies) to the Company through e-mail at
kficl17 @gmail.com, mentioning his / her name, folio numbers / demat account numbers, e-mail addresses
and mobile numbers, at least seven working days prior to the AGM, so that the required information can
be made available during the AGM.

. As per Regulation 12 of the Listing Regulations read with Schedule - | to the said Regulations, it is mandatory
for all the Companies to use bank details furnished by the investors for distributing dividends, interests,
redemption or repayment amounts to them through National / Regional / Local Electronic Clearing Services
(ECS) or Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) or National Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT), National
Automated Clearing House (NACH) wherever ECS / RTGS / NEFT / NACH and bank details are available. In
the absence of electronic facility, Companies are required to mandatorily print bank details of the investors on
‘payable-at par’ warrants, cheques or demand draft for distribution of Dividends or other cash benefits to the
investors. In addition to that, if bank details of investors are not available, Companies shall mandatorily print
the address of the investor on such payment instruments.

Therefore, Members holding shares in physical mode, if any, are requested to update their bank details with
the Company or RTA immediately. Members holding shares in demat mode are requested to record the ECS
mandate with their DPs concerned.

. SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has
mandated the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service
requests viz. issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal /
exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division / splitting of securities certificate; consolidation
of securities certificates/ folios; transmission and transposition.

Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form
ISR-4, the format of which is available on the Company’s website at https.//www kficl.com and on the RTA's
website at https:/nichetechpl.com. It may be noted that any service request can be processed only after the
folio is KYC Compliant.

In view of this, members holding shares in physical form, if any, are requested to consider converting their
holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or RTA in this regard.
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. To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are

requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices
and Circulars etc. from the Company electronically.

. Members are requested to quote the ledger folio / DP ID in all communication with the Company.

. A Route Map showing directions to reach to the venue of the AGM of the Company is given at the end of this

Notice as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings.

. Voting through electronic means:

a) As per the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and amendments thereto, read with the MCA
Circulars, the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ('SS-2') issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to facilitate its
Members to transact business of the AGM of the Company by voting through electronic means. For this,
the Company has engaged the services of CDSL having office at A Wing, 34/35 Floor, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013, to provide remote e-
voting services and e-voting facility during the AGM, who are holding the shares as on the cut-off date.

The remote e-voting period commences at 9:00 a.m. IST on Monday, August 25, 2025 and ends at 5:00
p.m. IST on Wednesday, August 27, 2025. During this period, the Members of the Company, holding
shares either in physical or dematerialized mode, as on the cut-off date i.e., Thursday, August 21, 2025
may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

The facility for voting through electronic means shall be made available during the AGM and the Members
attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right
during the AGM through electronic voting system. However, Members who have cast their vote by remote
e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

d) The instructions to cast votes through remote e-voting and through e-voting system during the AGM is
enclosed herewith and marked as Annexure-lll and the same shall form part of this Notice.

. In order to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner, Ms. Priya Mankani (ACS - 34744,

CP No. 17947) of Ms. Mankani & Associates, Company Secretaries, Kolkata, has been appointed by the
Board of Directors of the Company as the Scrutinizer.

. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the

Meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting in the presence of at least two
witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and make a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total
votes cast in favour or against, if any, not later than 3 (Three) days of conclusion of the AGM or within 2 (Two)
working days of conclusion of the AGM, whichever is earlier. The Scrutinizer thereafter shall submit the said
Report to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same and declare
within the stipulated time, the results of the voting forthwith. The resolution(s) shall be deemed to be passed
on the date of the AGM, subject to receipt of requisite number of votes.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the website of the Company
https://www.kficl.com/ and on the website of CDSL immediately after the results are declared by the Chairman

or a person authorised by him in writing. The same shall be communicated by the Company to the stock exchange.




Annexure-|

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ltem No. 3

Mr. Mohit Parakh, Independent Director had been appointed by the Members at the 34™ Annual General
Meeting held on September 28, 2020 for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from July 30, 2020 {ill the
conclusion of the 39" AGM of the Company. Based on rich experience, professional skill, knowledge,
continued valuable guidance to the management and the contributions made by Mr. Parakh during his
association with the Company and also on the basis of his performance evaluation, the Board of Directors of
the Company has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considered it
desirable that it shall be in the interest of the Company to continue to avail the services of Mr. Parakh, as an
Independent Director of the Company.

Further, in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Parakh fulfils the conditions specified in the Act read with Schedule
IV to the Act and Rules made thereunder and also under the Listing Regulations for re-appointment as an
Independent Director of the Company. Mr. Mohit Parakh is independent of the Management of the Company.
It is therefore proposed to re-appoint him as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a
second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of this AGM till the 44" AGM of
the Company, with a period of office not liable to retire by rotation. The details of Mr. Parakh are provided in
the Annexure-ll to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards
on General Meetings. Mr. Parakh is eligible and is not disqualified from being re-appointed as Director in terms
of Section 164 of the Act and has consented to continue as an Independent Director of the Company. The
Company has also received a declaration that he meets with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations.

Name of the Companies in which Mr. Mohit Parakh holds directorship other than the Company are:

Sl.No Name of the Company Designation

Sagun Commodities Private Limited Director
Veenapani Tieup Pvt Ltd

Evernew Traders Private Limited
Heritage Commodeal Private Limited
Lance Barter Private Limited
Wondersoft Barter Private Limited
Pallet Dealcom Private Limited
Sadabahar Properties Private Limited Independent Director
Anumodan Projects Pvt Ltd

Visisth Chay Vyapar Limited

North Eastern Publishing And Advertising Co Ltd.
Purbanchal Prestressed Ltd

Manorath Suppliers Private Limited

Seaside Agencies Private Limited
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The Company has pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, received notice, in writing, from a Member proposing
his candidature for re-appointment as an Independent Director.

All relevant documents concerning re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh as an Independent Director shall be
open for inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date
of AGM, i.e., Thursday, August 28, 2025.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Mr. Binod Kumar
Bihani are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise), in the proposed resolution fo be passed as a
Special Resolution. The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice, for
approval of the Members of the Company.

Iltem No. 4

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
(“the Act”) and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations”), M/s. Mankani & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Firm Registration
Number — S2018UP613300) has served as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for previous financial years.

Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, inter alia, provides that with effect from 1st April 2025, the Company

is required to appoint a Practicing Company Secretary for not more than one term of five consecutive years
or a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for not more than two terms of five
consecutive years, with the approval of the members at its Annual General Meeting (“AGM") and such
Secretarial Auditors(s) must be a peer reviewed company secretary and should not have incurred any of the
disqualifications as specified under the Listing Regulations. Further, as per the said Regulation, any
association of the individual or the firm as the Secretarial Auditor(s) of the Company before 31st March 2025
shall not be considered for the purpose of calculating the tenure of the Secretarial Auditor(s).

M/s. Mankani & Associates is a reputed Practicing Company Secretary firm established in 2018 by Ms. Priya
Mankani, an Associate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI"), having a team of
experienced and qualified company secretaries. Over the years, they have built a diverse client base, serving
corporates across the country. lts clientele spans companies across various business sectors and they offer
a wide range of services, including secretarial audits, corporate governance consulting, certifications, and
regulatory advisory.

Taking into account the above requirements, along with an evaluation of proposals received by the Company
and the consideration of factors such as technical skills, independence, industry experience, expertise, audit
partners, audit team, quality of audit practices, and past association with the Company, the Board of Directors,
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. Mankani & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries (Firm Registration Number - S2018UP613300) as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for a term of five consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion
of 44" AGM of the Company to be held in the Year 2030, covering the period from the financial year ending
on 31st March 2026 till financial year ending 31st March 2030, subject to the approval of the members of the
Company.




The Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee and M/s. Mankani & Associates, fixed the
remuneration payable for the financial year 2025-26 at % 7,500/- (Rupees seven thousand five hundred only),
plus any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the audit and other applicable taxes.

The Company has received written consent from M/s. Mankani & Associates confirming their eligibility and
willingness to be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. They have also confirmed that they
meet the requirements to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and Listing Regulations, and they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICSI and that
they have not incurred any of the disqualifications as specified by the SEBI. The appointment, if made,
complies with the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The Board of Directors in
consultation with the Audit Committee and M/s. Mankani & Associates, may alter or vary the terms and
conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually
agreed.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 4 of the accompanying
Notice of the 39" AGM. Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends aforesaid appointment to the
members for their approval by way of an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying
Notice of the 39" AGM.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Sk AR B o haare—
Chand Ratan Modi e

Date: 16.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




Annexure-Il

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE

FORTHCOMING AGM

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings]

Particulars

Item No.2

Item No.3

Name of the Director

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi
(DIN: 00343685)

Mr. Mohit Parakh
(DIN: 02033194)

Date of birth

July 11, 1959

April 18, 1984

Age

66

41

Nationality

Indian

Indian

Qualifications

Bachelor's degree in Commerce from
the University of Rajasthan.

Bachelor's degree in Commerce from
the University of Calcutta

Profile, experience and
expertise in  specific
functional areas

He has been associated with the
Company since 1999, and has been a
prominent figure in the real estate sector
for more than four decades, successfully
leading various high-profile projects.

He is at the helm of overall strategic
decision-making of the Company and
provides leadership to all operations.

An independent director with over 12
years of with extensive expertise in both
corporate leadership and
entrepreneurial ventures.

As a proprietor of a successful real
estate firm, Shribriddhi Properties, he
has a strong command in the real estate
industry  specializing in strategic
oversight, project management, and
financial governance. Adept in
professional accounting, he is an expert
in budgeting, financial analysis and
management  along  with  risk
management.

Date of first appointment
on the Board

August 22, 1999

September 28, 2020

Shareholding in the
Company (including
shareholding as a
beneficial owner)

NIL




Relationship with other
Directors, Manager or
with KMP

Father of Mrs. Chanchal Rungta, and
closely related to Ms. Tripty Modi & Kirti
Modi.

Number of meetings
attended during the
financial year 2024-25

No. of meetings held:6

No. of meetings attended:6

No. of meetings held:6

No. of meetings attended:6

List of outside
Directorships  held in
other Public Companies
(excluding foreign
Companies and
Companies under
Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013)

Purbanchal Prestressed Ltd

Maurya Trading Co. Ltd
Sangrahalaya Timber and Crafts Ltd
Hotahoti Wood Products Ltd
North  Eastern  Publishing
Advertising Co Ltd.

1)
2)
5)
4)
)

and

1) Purbanchal Prestressed Ltd
2) Visisth Chay Vyapar Limited
3) North Eastern Publishing and
Advertising Co Ltd.

The Listed entity from
which  Director  has
resigned in last three
years

Chairman / member of
the Committees of Board
of Directors of other
companies in which he is
a Director *

Sangrahalaya Timber and Crafts
Ltd

Hotahoti Wood Products Ltd
North Eastern Publishing and
Advertising Co Ltd.

1) Purbanchal Prestressed Ltd

2) Visisth Chay Vyapar Limited

3) North Eastern Publishing and
Advertising Co Ltd.

Terms and conditions of
Appointment  or Re-
appointment

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi is liable to retire
by rotation.

As per the resolution (Item No.3) of the
Notice convening this meeting read with
Explanatory statements thereto, Mr.
Mohit Parakh is proposed to be
appointed for a second term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years commencing from the
conclusion of this AGM till the 44th AGM
of the Company.

Remuneration proposed
to be paid

Remuneration last
drawn by such person, if
applicable (As per last
audited balance sheet
dated March 31, 2024)

NIL

*Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

In addition to the above, other requisite details required relating to aforesaid appointment/ re-appointment
have already been provided elsewhere in the Board’s Report.
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Annexure-lll

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

The way to vote electronically on CDSL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to CDSL e-Voting system
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on CDSL e-Voting system
Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

(a) Login method for e-Voting for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by the Listed Companies,
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile
number and email |d in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders |Login Method

1) Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest:

Individual : Users who have opted for Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
Shareholders holding user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page

securities in Demat

i without any further authentication. The users to login Easi / Easiest are
mode with CDSL

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing Myeasi username &
password.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the e-Voting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the e-Voting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting. Additionally, there are also links provided to access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers website directly. The menu will have links of e-Voting service provider
i.e., CDSL. Click on CDSL to cast your vote.




Users not registered for Easi / Easiest:

If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register is available at
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab
and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the e-Voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders Holding
securities in demat
mode with NSDL

Users registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz. https://eservices.
nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page,
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS'
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., CDSL
and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of CDSL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period & voting during the meeting.

Users not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https:/eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.jsp

e-Voting website of NSDL:

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder / Member' section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number
held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service
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provider i.e., CDSL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of CDSL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period & voting during the meeting

OTP Based Login

For OTP based login you can click
on https:/feservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to
enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP.
Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

e-Voting mobile application of NSDL.:
Shareholders / Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility
by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

" App Store % Google Play

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Shareholders (holding | Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging
securities in demat in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected
mode) login through to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
their c_lepository Voting feature. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., CDSL and you
participants will be redirected to e-Voting website of CDSL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.




Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
Demat mode with CDSL CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
1800 21 09911

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
Demat mode with NSDL NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022
- 24997000

(b) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical
mode.

How to Log-in to CDSL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of CDSL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: www.evotingindia.com
either on a personal computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login" which is available under
‘Shareholder / Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password / OTP and a Verification Code
as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services ie., IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL e-services after using
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e., Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below:

SI.No. | Manner of holding shares i.e., Demat (NSDL or | Your User ID is:
CDSL) or Physical
A For Members who hold shares in demat account | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.
with NSDL

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID
is 12 then your user |D is IN30Q***1 2%*****

For Members who hold shares in demat account | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.
with CDSL




2**************

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 1
then your user ID g ] 2*H**wichitick

For Members holding shares in Physical Form EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
with the Company.

For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
130720 then user D is 130720001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your
vote.

If you are using CDSL e-Voting system for the first time, enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by
Income Tax Department.

However, shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company / Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the
company records in order to login. If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

e. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which
they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

f. For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

g. Click on the EVSN for the Company Name on which you choose to vote. On the voting page, you will see
“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option
YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.




h.  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. After
selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK", else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page. If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

(c) Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —-Remote Voting

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to

log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

Alternatively, non-individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; kficl17@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual
tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer fo verify the same.




PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-
VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account detials (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary
ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy
of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting
System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and
022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to,
Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

M/s. Mankani & associates- Mrs. Priya Mankani, Practising Company Secretary has been appointed as
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall
not later than 3(three) days of conclusion of the meeting make a consolidated scrutinizer's Report (which
includes remote e-voting and voting by poll) of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the
Chairman or a person authorised by her in writing who shall countersign the same and declare the results
of the voting forthwith.

Subject to casting of requisite number of votes in favour of the resolution(s), it shall be deemed to be
passed on the date of AGM of the Company.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
kficl17 @amail.com and on the website of CDSL immediately after declaration of results of passing of the
resolution at the AGM of the Company and the same shall also be communicated to the Metropolitan
Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSE) where the shares of the Company are listed.




ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

FolioNo.: DP-IDNo.: Client-ID No.

Name of Member(s):

Name of the Proxy holder:

Registered Address:

Number of Shares Held

I, hereby record my presence of the 39 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Thursday
the August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. af 1stFloor, Room No. 5, HM Market, TR Phookan Road, Guwahati-781001.

Signature of the Member / Representative / Proxy Holder*

* Strike out whichever is not applicable




FORM OF PROXY
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Folio No.: DPID No.: Client ID No..
Name of the Member(s): Email Id:

Registered Address:

I/We, being members, holding shares of KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD hereby
appoint:

1 Name: E-mail Id
Address: or failing him/her

2. Name: E-mail ld

Address: or failing him/her

3. Name: E-mail Id
Address:

as my / our Proxy to vote for me / us, on my / our behalf at the 39 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company held on August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of the resolutions
as mentioned in the Company’s Notice.

Signed this day of 2025. Signature of Member.

Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s). 1.

2
3.

NOTE: The Form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 1st
Floor, Room No. 5, HM Market, TR Phookan Road, Guwahati-781001 not later than 48 hours before the time
for holding the meeting.




Route map for the location of the venue of the 39 Annual General Meeting of Kamini Finance
And Investment Company Ltd




Board’s Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

The Directors are pleased to present the 39t Annual Report on the business and operations of Kamini Finance
And Investment Company Ltd (‘the Company") together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025.

Financial Highlights

During the year under review, performance of your company is as under: (% in 000)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from Operations - 1,001
Other Income 176 1,088
Total Income 176 2,089
Less: Expenditure 1,856 5,457
Profit before Tax (1,679) (3,368)
Provision for Taxation - -
Profit / Loss for the year after Tax (1,679) (3,368)
Add: Balance brought forward from last year (76495) (73,442)
Transferred to Reserve u/s 45-IC of the RBI - -
Act, 134
Taxation for earlier year - 315
Balance Profit / Loss carried forward to (78,175) (76,495)
Balance Sheet

Operations and State of Company’s Affairs

The Company's performance is influenced by a range of factors, including market dynamics and external
conditions. While we continue to actively navigate and mitigate these challenges, we remain optimistic about
the Company’s future prospects.

Dividend
Considering the non-availability of profits during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of
Directors of the Company has not proposed any dividend on equity shares.

Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of your Company is ¥ 12,01,00,000 /- divided into 12,0,10,000 Equity Shares
of face value of 210/- each.




The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of your Company is 2 12,00,16,500/- divided into
1,20,01,650 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each.

There is no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company during the year
under review.

General Reserves
No amount has been transferred to the General Reserve for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

NBFC Reserve Fund

During the year under review, no amount was transferred to the NBFC Reserve Fund pursuant to the
provisions of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as the Company incurred a loss during
the year.

Material Changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the
date of the report

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the
date on which this Report has been signed.

Change in the nature of Business, if any.

The Company is engaged in Non-Banking Financial activity and is duly registered with the RBIl as an NBFC
Company. There has been no change(s) of business of the Company or in the nature of business carried on
by the Company during the financial year under review.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators / courts / tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the Company’s operations in future

During the year under review, no significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators / courts
/ tribunals that may impact the going concern status and the operations of the Company in future.

Particulars of contracts and arrangement with Related Parties

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties during the financial year 2024-25 as defined
under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Specification of Definitions
Details) Rules, 2014 were held in the Ordinary Course of Business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis. There
were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year 2024-25, which were




in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required under Ind AS-24 have been
made in the Notes to the financial statements.

Accordingly, the disclosure in Form AOC-2, pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required. The policy on Related Party
Transactions can be accessed on the website of the Company https://www.kficl.com/.

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use
or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining
the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of the company checks and
verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with policy adopted by the company.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year under review, no Corporate Insolvency Resolution application was made or proceeding was
initiated by / against the Company under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (as
amended). Further, no application or proceeding by / against the Company under the provisions of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (as amended) is pending as on March 31, 2025.

RBI Directive to NBFC

The Company did not invite or accept any deposits from the public during the financial year ended March
31, 2025. Further, for the financial year commencing April 1, 2025, the Board of Directors, through a
resolution passed at its meeting, has confirmed that the Company shall not invite or accept any deposits
from the public during the financial year 2025-26.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture, or Associate Company as defined under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposit from public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such, no unclaimed / unpaid

matured deposits or interest thereon was due as on March 31, 2024.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, CSR is not applicable to the Company during the financial year under review.
Accordingly, no CSR initiatives or expenditures were undertaken.




Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The provision of Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to conservation of energy and
technology absorption do not apply to the Company. There was no foreign inflow or outflow during the year
under review.

Risk Management Policy

The Company's Risk Management Policy recognizes that risk is an integral part of any business and
the Company is committed to manage the risk in a proactive and efficient manner.

Number of Board Meetings

During the year, 6 (six) meetings of the Board were held. The details of meetings of the Board held during
the financial year 2024-25 have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of the
Report.

Audit Committee

The details pertaining to the composition of the Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance
Report which is a part of this Report.

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2025 is available on the
Company’s website https://www.kficl.com/.

Details of significant & material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal

No significant & material orders have been passed by any regulator or court or tribunal against the Company.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower policy and it has established adequate vigil
mechanism for its employees and directors to report concern about unethical practice. No person has been
denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The latest Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy
is available at https://www kficl.com/.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the provisions of Section 125 of
the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.




a.

Internal Auditor

M/s. Gaurav Manoj & Co., practicing chartered accountants, perform the duties of Internal Auditor of the
Company and his report is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Your Company’s Board is duly constituted in compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet with the criteria of independence as required
under sub section 7 of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing
Regulations.

The Board is also of the opinion that Independent Directors meet with the criteria of independence under
sub section 6 of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.

There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the
Company.

All the Independent Directors have registered themselves / renewed their registration pursuant to the
Companies (Creation and Maintenance of databank of Independent Directors) Rules, 2019.

The Board confirms that the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of integrity, expertise and
experience (including the proficiency) in terms of Rule 8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Following re-appointment of Directors had been made during the year:

Pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Chand Ratan Modi (DIN: 00343685), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Mr. Mohit Parakh, Independent Director had been appointed by the Members at the 34th Annual General
Meeting held on September 28, 2020 for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from July 30, 2020 till the
conclusion of the 39" AGM of the Company. The said tenure will expire due to efflux of time. The Board
vide its Meeting held on May 16, 2025 had approved the re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh for a second
term of 5 (Five) consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of this AGM {ill the 39" AGM of the
Company, subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The brief profile
of Mr. Mohit Parakh and other relevant information under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings with respect to Director seeking re-appoinment have been
provided in the Notice convening Annual General Meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are:

a. Mr. Chand Ratan Modi, Managing Director
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b. Ms. Kirti Modi, Chief Financial Officer
c.  Mr. Risbh Singhi, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The Company has put in place an Induction and Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors of the
Company. The details of such Familiarization Programme are mentioned in the Report on Corporate
Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report and the same is available at the link
https://www kficl.com/index.html.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

In terms of requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the meeting
of Independent Directors was separately held on February 13, 2025 during the year under report.

Company’s Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors

The Company has been following a policy namely “Nomination and Remuneration Policy” with respect to
appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management
Personnel. The appointment of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel is subject to the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is in conformity with the requirement of Section
178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The objectives and key features of this
Policy are:

1. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and independence
of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel and recommend to
the Board, a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees.

1A. For every appointment of an Independent Director, the Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the
role and capabilities required of an Independent Director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an Independent Director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the
purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. Use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and

c. Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

2. Devising a policy on Board diversity;




3. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial and Senior Management;

4. Directors’ induction and continued updation as and when required of their roles, responsibilities and
liabilities;

5. Formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors including
Independent Directors / Non-Executive Directors;

The aforesaid Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been uploaded on the website of your Company at
https://www.kficl.com/index.html.

Secretarial Standards

The Company has devised adequate systems to ensure compliance with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are operating effectively

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’), your Directors to the best of their
knowledge and ability confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) proper internal financial controls are followed by the Company and that such financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31,
2025.

Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not reported, any incident
of fraud committed in your Company by its Officers or Employees, to the Audit Committee and / or to the




Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 details of which needs to be mentioned in this
Report.

Auditors

M/s. S. Mandal & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: 314188E),was appointed by the
Members of the Company at the 38t Annual General Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
second consecutive term of 5 (Five) years commencing from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
held on September 26, 2024 till the conclusion of the 43 Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial
year 2029-30. The Auditors’ Report on the Annual Accounts of the Company forms part of the Annual Report
of the Company. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board
has based on the recommendation of Audit Committee approved appointment of M/s. Mankani & Associates,
(Firm Registration Number - S2018UP613300) Company Secretaries, represented by its Partner, Ms. Priya
Mankani (ACS No. 34744, C. P. No. 17947), to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith and marked
as Annexure - | to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation,
adverse remark or disclaimer.

Disclosure as required under Rule 8(5)(xii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

The disclosure as per Rule 8(5)(xii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, is not applicable
to the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Investments and Guarantees

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has not made any investment, has not given any loans, has
not provided any guarantees, has not provided any security in connection with any loan, has not acquired
securities by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, in excess of the thresholds provided in Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Managerial Remuneration, Particulars of Employees and related disclosure

Details of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1)
and Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are
as follows:




A. Managerial Remuneration

The Company has not paid any remuneration to its Directors, including Whole-Time Directors, during the
financial year.

B. Particulars of Employees

Details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(1), 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended), are as follows:-

Further, the Executive Director(s), Non-Executive Director(s), and Independent Director(s) of the Company
have not drawn any remuneration from the Company during the financial year. Pursuant to Rule 5(2) and
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

Name of the | Designation Qualification | Experience | Total J Nature of Date of The last The Whether
KMP -No. of Remuneration employment | commencement i employment | percent | anysuch
years whether of employment held by age employee
including contractual such of isa
previous or otherwise employee equity relative of
employment before shares | any
joining held Director
the or
Company Manager
of the
Company
Chand Ratan | Managing | B.Com Nil Contractual 22.08.1999 Nil i Close
Modi Director relative of
Kirti Modi
Risbh Kumar | Company | Company 7,89,282 Permanent 27.06.2023 Niche i Nil

Singhi Secretary Secretary Technologies
Private Limited
Kirti Modi CFO Master's Nil Permanent 22.08.2016 Nil i Close
Economics relative of
Mr.

Chand
Ratan Modi

Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company firmly believes in providing a safe, supportive and harassment free workplace for each and
every individual working for the Company through various interventions and practices and has zero tolerance
for sexual harassment at workplace. It is the continuous endeavour of the management of the Company to
create and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment. No complaints relating to the sexual harassment had been received during the
year under report.

Statement on Maternity Benefit Compliance

Pursuant fo the requirements of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, the Company confirms its commitment to
full compliance with all applicable provisions of the Act.




During the reporting period, no employee availed maternity benefits. However, the Company has established
the necessary policies and mechanisms to ensure that all entittements under the Act—such as paid maternity
leave, nursing breaks, and protection from dismissal during maternity leave—are provided as and when
required.

The Company remains fully committed to supporting its employees and ensuring a safe, inclusive, and
compliant workplace environment.

Annual Performance

Evaluation of the Directors In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued
there under and the Listing Regulations, based on the criteria such as number of Board and Committee
meetings attended during the year, contributions to the decision making and relevant expertise to the Board
etc., the Board of Directors has carried out the annual performance evaluation of the entire Board,
Committees and all the Directors based on the criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, the
Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole was evaluated.

Corporate Governance

A Report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary
confirming corporate governance requirements as stipulated under Listing Regulations and confirming that
none of the Board of Directors of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as a Director of the Company as prescribed under Listing Regulations is enclosed as Annexure
- Il and forms part of this Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Indian financial services sector has demonstrated resilience and growth, driven by factors such as
increased retail participation, technological advancements, and favorable regulatory developments. The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has implemented measures to enhance market transparency
and investor protection, fostering a conducive environment for broking firms.

The company has implemented a robust risk management framework to identify, assess, and mitigate
potential risks. Key risks include:

Market Volatility: Fluctuations in market conditions can impact trading volumes and profitability.

Regulatory Changes: Adherence to evolving SEBI regulations requires continuous monitoring and
compliance.

Cybersecurity Threats: Protecting client data and maintaining the integrity of trading systems is
paramount.
Mitigation strategies involve regular risk assessments, compliance audits, and investment in cybersecurity
infrastructure.

The company adheres to the highest standards of corporate governance, ensuring transparency and
accountability in all operations. The Board of Directors comprises experienced professionals with diverse
expertise, and various committees oversee key areas such as audit, risk management, and remuneration.
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» Focus on Sustainability: Implement environmentally and socially responsible practices in business
operations.

The company remains committed to delivering value to its stakeholders through strategic
initiatives, operational excellence, and a client-centric approach. The management is confident
in navigating the challenges of the financial markets and achieving sustained growth in the
coming years.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Annual Report, including those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis,
describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may constitute ‘forward
looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Although the expectations are
based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°', 2025
[BursuAl o Section 2040 1) of the Componics Act, 2013 and Rule Neo. 2 of the Companies

{Appointment ord Remuneration of Manageral Persannel] Rufes, 2014)

Ta,

The Members,

Karmind Finance & investment Company Umited
Reom Na5, 17 Floor,

MM Market,

T B Phookan Road

Guwahati-TE1001

Wi have conducted the seerctarial audit af the compliance of apnlicuble slatutory provisions
and the adherenca tn soad corpegate practioss by MUs. Kamini Finance & [nwesment
Company Lim te] (hereinaBer called the Company} Tor aisd dluring the financial v eqded

s

March 317 2025, Secrciarial Audit was corducted on pest & hasis, in a manner that
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il expressing our opanion therean
Based o our verfioation of the M's, Kaming Finance & Investment Company Limited books.
papers, minute books, farms sl setwrns flsd and other records maintuined by e Carpany
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representalives during the conduct of ssoretaral audit Wi herely report that m our openian,
the Company has, during the awdit perind coverig (he firancial vear ended or March 317,
2025, gomplied with the satutory provisians lisied hereunder and also that the Company has
Board-processes and complimce-mechanizm in place 1o the extent, in the manner and subyec
ta the reparting mede hereina
e have examined the hooks, papers. minues baok, toems and retams fled and other reconds
maintmined by Mes Ramini Finaoos & Invesiment Company Limited for and g the
figancinl vear anded March 319 2023 acoording 10 the provis oft
The Companies Act, 2003 (b Act] arud the roles made thereander,
The Securitics Comtricts (Regulation) Acl. 1956 (CSCRA'Y amd e rules mide
herermder,
The depositeries Act, 1990w the Repulations ard Bye-laws Tramed veseunder;
Fievizn Dxchange Monagement Acr, 1%9% and the rfes and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Dirsct Investmend, Uverscas Dirgct nvastment
ared Ealemal Comumercial Borrowings:
The Regulations and Cuidelines preserived under the Seeorities Exchange Board of

Indin Act, 1992 (*SEBI Ac™) vie:

51 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Sulstantial Acquisition of Shares
ancl Takeovers) Repulations, 2001
The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Prohivition of Insider Traling

Meguin iens, 2015
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{Tor the Secretarial Audit Report of BM/S. Kamini Finance & Investment Company Limited
for the finandal year ended 31.03.2025)

£,

The Mermbers,

Kamini Finance & Ipwestment Company Limited
Raom Ne.S, 1¥ Floor,

H.hL Dasket,

1.R.Phockan Hoad

Guwahati- f81001

Our Secretarial Aedit Report for the financial yvear ended 31.03. 2025 of even date « to be

read glang with this letter,

Maintenance of sceretarial recoed i the nsgonsibility of the management of the
Company, Our responsshilily s to express an opinion on these secrelarinl recerds
Basest on cur andit

We have followed the audic pracices and processes as were appropriate o oblain
reasomible assurance about the correciness of the contents of the seoretarial records.
The verification was done on west basis o ensure thas corect facts are retlected i
secrenirial records, We believe that the provesses aml practices, wy followed provide o
reasonable basis For our opinion,

We have not verified the correctness and appropiiatersess of francial records and
Books of Acopunts of the Company.

Where ever reguired. we have oblained the Management Representation about the

compliames . riles and regulation and happening of evems e,

Mhe complinnee ol the provisions nf Corporste and other .;|‘=pliy;|h e hws, rubes,

repulntions, samdands is the pesponsibilicy of menagement, Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.
The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as o the future viahility of the
Company nor the ellicacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.
For MANKANE & ASSOCIATES
Company Sepreturies
Peer Review Noi J077/2022
L1 i

i ¥ a
i,

Mace: Kolkata FrivaMuonkani
Date: 16.03,2023 Proprictor
Yembership Mo, 34744

C.P Mo, : 1T

Labi: AOS47 440000365410




‘Annexure - II’

Report on Corporate Governance

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our philosophy of Corporate Governance is founded on the pillars of faimess, accountability, disclosures and
transparency, equal treatment to all the stakeholders and social responsibility. Your Company believes that
Corporate Governance extends beyond corporate laws. Its fundamental objective is not merely to fulfil legal
requirements, but also the adherence to systems and procedures, ensuring the commitment of the Board of
Directors in managing the Company's affairs in a transparent manner to maximize the long-term value of the
stakeholders at large.

Your Company has adopted an appropriate Corporate Governance framework to ensure timely and accurate
disclosure on all material matters including the financial position, performance, ownership and governance of
the Company.

Your Company's policies and practices relating to the Corporate Governance are discussed in the following
sections viz.:

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors
to have a balanced Board Structure. The Board has five Directors (including two Woman Directors), out of which
one is Executive Director, two are Non - Executive Non- Independent Director and two are Non-Executive,
Independent Directors of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of your Company is Non-Executive, Independent Director.

The Board has adequate mix of skills, expertise and competencies for running the business of the Company.
The following chart specifies the same:

Name of Director | Designation Operations | Management | Administration | Finance
Category

Mr. Jayanta | Chairman, N N \
Chowdhury Independent
Director

Mr. Chand Ratan | Managing Director
Modi




Mrs.
Rungta

Chanchal | Non-Executive &
Non-Independent

Director

Non-Executive &
Non-Independent
Director

Ms. Tripty Modi

Mr. Mohit Parakh Independent

Director

Composition of the Board, details of other directorships, committee positions are given below:

Name

Directors
Identification
Number
(DIN)

Category of
Directors

Relationship
with  other
Directors

No. of

Directorships
held
(including
Kamini
Finance and
Investment
Ltd.)*

No.:.. 'of

Chairpersonship in Board

Committees
Kamini

Finance
Investment Ltd.)

Membership/

(including
and

Member

Chairperson

Mr. Jayanta
Chowdhury

10597724

Chairman,
Independent
Director

6

Mr. Chand
Ratan Modi

00343685

Non-
Executive &
Non-
Independent
Director

Father of Mrs.
Chanchal
Rungta

Ms.
Modi

Tripty

07203672

Non-
Executive &
Non-
Independent
Director

Close relative
of the Modi
family

Mrs.
Chanchal
Rungta

07590027

Non-
Executive &
Non-
Independent
Director

Daughter of
Mr.  Chand
Ratan Modi

Mr.  Mohit
Parakh

02033194

Independent
Director




Notes:

Number of Directorships held excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, High
Value Debt Listed Entities, Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (earlier Section 25 of the
Companies Act, 1956) and Alternate directorships. Only covers Membership / Chairpersonship of Audit
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Listed and Unlisted Public Limited Companies.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Board Committees and a Chairman of more
than 5 such Committees, across all Companies in which he / she is a Director.

None of the Directors holds directorships in more than 20 Companies and more than 10 Public Companies
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors met 6 (six) times during the year under review. The date of the Board Meetings
and attendance thereat are furnished hereunder:

SI.No | Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors present
1 April 03, 2024
7 May 27, 2024
3 July 30, 2024
4
5
6

September 09, 2024
November 11, 2024
February 06, 2025

Attendance of individual Directors at the Board Meetings and last AGM:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings | Attendance at last AGM held
Attended on September 26, 2024
Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury 4 Yes

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi 6 Yes

Ms. Tripty Modi 6 Yes

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta 6 Yes

Mr. Mohit Parakh 6 : Yes

Number of Shares and Convertible instruments held by Non- Executive Directors:

As on March 31, 2025, none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any Share / Convertible instruments in the
Company.

Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors fulfil the criteria of independence, which are given under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and are Independent of the
Management of the Company.

All the Independent Directors have given declaration of independence as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.




During the year under review, meetings of Independent Directors of the Company, as per the requirements of
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations, was held on February
13,2028

Familiarization Programme

Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has in place
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors to familiarize them about the Company and their role,
rights and responsibilities in the Company. The details of Familiarization Programme imparted during the
financial year 2024- 25, are uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link
https:/kficl.com/index.html.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your Company’s Board of Directors has constituted the following Statutory Committees to comply the
requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, viz.:

[ Audit Committee;
Il Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
Stakeholders Relationship Committee; and

The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the respective Chairman
of these Committees, determines the frequency of the meetings of these Committees. The
recommendations of the Committees are submitted to the Board for their approval.

The Board of Directors has also adopted the following policies in line with the requirement of the Listing
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013:

) Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil mechanism);

) Policy on Evaluation of performances of Board of Directors;
) Nomination and Remuneration Policy;
)
)

a
b
c
d

Risk Management Policy;

e) Policy on Diversity of Board of Directors;

f) Policy on Succession Planning for the Board and Senior Management;
g) Policy on Disclosure of Material Events / Information;

h) Policy for Preservation of Documents and Archival;

i) Policy on Familiarisation Programme of Independent Directors;

j) Policy on Related Party Transactions;

k) Policy on Determination of Material Subsidiary.

. Audit Committee

The Composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2025, consists of following members
viz.

1. Mr. Mohit Parakh - Chairman
2. Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury- Member
3. Mrs. Chanchal Rungta— Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee
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The terms of reference of Audit Committee are as follows:

Overseeing our Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, and replacement, remuneration,
and terms of appointment of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fee;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and the effectiveness of audit
process;

Approval of payments to the statutory auditors for any other services rendered by statutory
auditors;

Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

1. Matters required to be stated in the Director’s responsibility statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

2. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

3. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

4. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

5. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
6. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

7. Qualifications and modified opinions in the draft audit report.

Reviewing with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments:

Valuation of undertakings or assets of our Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of our Company with related parties;
Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report




submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or
grievances;

. Reviewing with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors and
adequacy of the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature

and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Approval of appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism, in case the same is existing;

Carrying out any other functions as provided under the Companies Act, the SEBI Listing
Regulations and other applicable laws;

To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend the Audit Committee
charter from time to time;

. Overseeing the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the chairman of the Audit
Committee directly hearing grievances of victimization of the employees and directors, who used
the vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns in appropriate and exceptional cases;

Recommending to the Board of Directors the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
fixation of audit fees and approval for payment for any other services;




y. Reviewing the utilization of loans and / or advances from investment by the holding company in
the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever
is lower including existing loans / advances / investments; and

Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

The Company’s Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times during the financial year ended March 31,
2025 viz. April 03, 2024; May 27, 2024; July 30, 2024; November 11, 2024 and February 06,
2025.

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held
during the year ended March 31, 2025:

Members Designation & Category No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Mohit Parakh Chairman, Independent Director 3]

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta Member, Non-Executive & Non- 5
Independent Director

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury Member, Independent Director

Notes:
The CFO was an invitee to the Audit Committee Meetings and she attended the meetings. All the
members of the Audit Committee have requisite accounting and financial management expertise.

Mr. Mohit Parakh, Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the previous Annual General Meeting
held on September 26, 2024 and responded to the queries raised by the shareholders.

Yearly disclosure relating to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 was placed before
the Committee.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors.
Il Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2025, consists of
following members viz.

1. Mr. Mohit Parakh - Chairman
2. Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury - Member
3. Ms. Tripty Modi - Member
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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a. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

b. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board;

c. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

d. Identify persons who are qualified to become directors or who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and
shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance;

e. Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;

f. Determining our Company's policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including
pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such

directors;

g. Determine compensation levels payable to the senior management personnel and other staff (as
deemed necessary), which shall be market-related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable component;

h. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current
Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

i. Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021;

j. Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no violation, by an employee of any
applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; or

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003.

k. Determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

. Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors and / or are statutorily
prescribed under any law to be attended to by such committee;

m. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management; and

n. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such
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evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The
person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the
capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee may:

1. Use the services of an external agencies, if required;
2. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
3. Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration policy in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and in order to harmonize the aspirations of
human resources consistent with the goals of the Company which inter alia includes Company'’s policy
on Board Diversity, selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors, criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and criteria for performance evaluation of
the Directors.

Composition and attendance at Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings:
The Company's Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (Two) times during the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 viz. May 27, 2024 and July 30, 2024.

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2025:

Members

Designation & Category

No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Mohit Parakh

Chairman, Non-Executive -
Independent Director

2

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury

Non-Executive - Independent
Director

1

Ms. Tripty Modi

Member, Non-Executive & Non-

2

Independent Director

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors has carried out the annual performance evaluation of the entire Board, Committees and all
the Directors based on the criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from
all the Directors. The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board
composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning etc. The
criteria for performance evaluation of Committees of the Board included aspects like composition of
Committees, effectiveness of Committee meetings etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of the
individual Directors included aspects on contribution to the Board and Committee meetings like
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in
meetings etc.




Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors for the financial Year 2024-25:

In accordance with the principles of good corporate governance and in line with the Company's
remuneration policy, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not receive any remuneration for
their services on the Board.

For the financial year 2024-25, the Non-Executive Directors have not been paid any sitting fees,
commission, stock options, or any other form of compensation or benefits, whether in cash or kind, for
attending Board meetings, Committee meetings, or for any other services rendered in their capacity as
Directors of the Company.

The Company acknowledges the valuable guidance and oversight provided by the Non-Executive
Directors in steering the Company'’s strategic direction and ensuring effective governance, even though
they have voluntarily foregone any remuneration.

This policy of non-remuneration reflects the commitment of the Non-Executive Directors to uphold high
standards of ethical and fiduciary responsibility, aligning with the long-term interests of the Company
and its stakeholders.

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors

During the financial year 2024-25, no remuneration was paid to the Executive Directors of the
Company. This includes:

o Salary
Perquisites and allowances
Commission
Performance-linked incentives
Stock options or any other form of compensation

The Executive Directors have not drawn any remuneration, either from the Company for the said
financial year.

This disclosure is made in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and
relevant corporate governance requirements. It also reflects the Executive Directors' commitment to the
long-term goals and sustainability of the Company without drawing financial benefit in their executive
capacity during the reporting period.

Il Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Composition and attendance at Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meeting:

In compliance with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has constituted the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee inter alia, to consider and review the complaints received from shareholders.
Detail of share transfers / transmissions, if any, approved by the Committee are placed at the Board
Meetings from time to time.




The Company’s Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met 2 (Two) times during the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 viz. May 27, 2024 and July 30, 2024.

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2025:

Members Designation & Category No. of Meetings Attended
Mrs. Chanchal Rungta Chairperson, Non-Executive & 2
Non-Independent Director

Ms. Tripty Modi Member, Non-Executive & Non-
Independent Director

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury Member, Non-Executive -
Independent Director

Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee and is the Compliance Officer of the
Company.

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta, Chairperson of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee attended the previous
Annual General Meeting held on September 26, 2024,

The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows:

a. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue
of new / duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

b. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

¢. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

d. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory notices
by the shareholders of the Company; and

e. Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder, each as amended or other applicable law.

SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redressal system.




The salient features of this system are centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action
Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concemed companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on
the complaint and its current status.

Your Company has been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints
received through SCORES or otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint.

However, SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/P/CIR/2022/0150 dated November 07, 2022
has mandated the investors to first take up their grievances for redressal with the Company, through their
designated persons / officials who handle issues relating to compliance and redressal of investor
grievances. In case, the Company fails to redress the complaint within the statutory timeline, the investor
may then file his / her complaint in SCORES.

No Shares are lying in Demat Suspense Account / unclaimed suspense Account. Hence, the disclosure
of the same is not applicable.

There were no shareholder complaints / requests pending at the beginning of the year. Also, no
shareholder complaints / requests have been received during the year.

Exclusive e-mail id for Investor Grievances: https:/kficl.com/index.html.

Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Portal

SEBI, by consolidating its Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/QIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated July
31, 2023, read with the corrigendum cum amendment Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD
1/PICIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023 and amendment Circular having No. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-
3/PICIR/2023/191 dated December 20, 2023 has issued a Master Circular having No.
SEBI/HO/OIAE/QIAE_IAD-3/P/CIR/2023/195 dated December 28, 2023 on “Online Resolution of
Disputes in the Indian Securities Market”.

Through the said Circulars, SEBI has established a common ODR Portal to hamess online conciliation
and arbitration for resolution of disputes in the Indian Securities Market.

Post exhausting the option to resolve grievances with the RTA / Company directly and through existing
SCORES platform, the investors can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal
(https://smartodr.in/login) and the same can also be accessed through the Company’s website
https://kficl.com/index.html.

General Body meetings

Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were held:

Year Venue Date Time Special Resolutions passed
2023-24 | Registered Office | 26.09.2024 10:00a.m. | -
2022-23 | Registered Office | 22.09.2023 10:00 a.m. | Re-appointment of Mr. Avi Lunia (DIN:
07687360) as Non Executive
Independent Director




2021-22 | Registered Office | 22.09.2022 Shifting of Registered office of the
Company from the State of Assam to
the State of West Bengal, under the
jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies,
Kolkata and consequent amendments
to the Memorandum of Association of
the Company

Details of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during the year:

No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year 2024-25. Also, as on date, no
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting is proposed to be held.

Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot:

There was no special resolution passed through postal ballot during the financial year 2024-25. Also, as
at date, no Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot.

6. Disclosures
a. Statutory Compliance
The Company has complied with rules and regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges,
Securities and Exchange Board of India and any other statutory authority relating to capital
market.

. Related Party Transactions

The Company has adopted the Related Party Transaction Policy, which is available on its
website and can be accessed at web link https://kficl.com/index.html.

The details of all significant transactions with related parties are periodically placed before the
Audit Committee. The Company has entered into related party transactions as set out in notes
to accounts, which do not have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

. Subsidiary

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture company as on March
31, 2025. Accordingly, the requirements relating to consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures are not applicable for the financial year 2024-25.

. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy
In line with Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated Vigil
Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to report concems about unethical behaviour, actual or

suspected incidents of fraud or violation of Code of Conduct that could adversely impact the
Company’s operations, business performance and / or reputation, in a secure and confidential
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manner. The Company has also provided the complainant direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. Further, no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been placed on the website of the Company and web-link thereto

is: https:/kficl.com/index.html.

Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations, to

the extent applicable.

Non-Mandatory Requirements

Particulars

Status

The Board

Non-Executive Chairperson may be entitled to maintain a
chairperson’s office at the listed entity’s expense and also
allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of
his / her duties

Not Applicable

Shareholders’ Right

A half-yearly declaration of financial performance including
summary of significant events in last six-months, may be sent to
each household of shareholders

Complied

Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The listed entity may move towards a regime of financial
statements with unmodified opinion

Complied, there are no
qualification in the Audit Report

Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director
or the Chief Executive Officer

The listed entity may appoint separate persons to the post of the
Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive
Officer, such that the Chairperson shall:

a.  beanon-executive director; and

b. not be related to the Managing Director or the Chief Executive
Officer as per the definition of the term “relative” defined under
the Companies Act, 2013

The Chairman of the Company is
Non-Executive, Independent
Director.

Reporting of internal auditor

Complied




| The internal auditor may report directly to the Audit Committee | |

8. Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations

There are no non-compliances of any requirements of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2)
to (10) of Part C mentioned in Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.

In accordance with Regulation 26(6) of the Listing Regulations, we hereby confirm that no employee
including Key Managerial Personnel or Director or Promoter of the Company has entered into any
agreement for himself / herself or on behalf of any other person, with any shareholder or any other third
party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with dealings in the securities of the
Company

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013.

. Model Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Team

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all its director's and members of the Senior
Management, which is in consonance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations. The said code
is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link:
https:/kficl.com/index.html.

All the Board Members and members of the Senior Management have affirmed compliance with Code
of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The draft Directors’ Responsibility Statement signed by Mr. Chand Ratan Modi, Managing Director
which is included in the Board's Report for the financial year 2024-25 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on May 16, 2025.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

In terms of Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018, Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is carried out on a quarterly basis by a
Practicing Company Secretary with a view to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities
Depository Limited (“NDSL") and those held in physical form with the total issued, paid up and listed
capital of the Company. The audit report, inter alia, confirms that the Register of Members is duly
updated and that demat / remat requests were confirmed within stipulated time etc. The said report is
also submitted to the stock Exchange.




Risk Management Policy

The Company has in place Risk Management System which takes care of risk identification,
assessment and mitigation. There are no risks, which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence
of the Company.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders for
prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of the Company. The code, inter-alia, prohibits purchase /
sale of shares of the Company by Directors and designated person while in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window
is closed.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. Number of Complaints filed during the financial year - NIL
b. Number of Complaints disposed of during the financial year - Not Applicable

¢. Number of Complaints pending as on end of the financial year - Not Applicable

. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms / companies in which directors are interested by name and amount

Not Applicable, as the Company did not provide any loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms
/ companies in which directors are interested.

. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation
and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries

Not Applicable, as the Company does not have any material subsidiary.

. Means of Communication

Website: The Company’'s website https:/kficl.com/index.html contains, inter alia, the updated
information pertaining to quarterly, half- yearly and annual financial results, annual reports, and
shareholding pattern, important announcements. The said information is available in a user friendly and
downloadable form.

Financial Results: The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are submitted
to Calcutta Stock Exchange after approval of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Annual Report containing inter alia Financial Statement, Board's Report, Auditors’ Report, Corporate
Governance Report is circulated to the Members and others entitled thereto and is also available on
website of the Company https://kficl.com/index.html.




Uploading on stock Exchange: The quarterly results, quarterly compliances and all other corporate
communications to the Stock Exchanges are filed electronically on Listing Centre for the Stock
Exchange.

19. General Shareholder’s information:

a.

Annual General Meeting

Date, time and venue

The 39" Annual General Meeting (AGM)
of the Company will be held on Thursday,
August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. IST.

Financial Year

Financial Year is April 01 to March 31 of the
following year

Quarterly results will be declared as per the following tentative schedule:

Financial reporting for the quarter ending
June 30, 2025

By the first fortnight of August, 2025

Financial reporting for the half year ending
September 30, 2025

By the first fortnight of November, 2025

Financial reporting for the quarter ending
December 31, 2025

By the first fortnight of February, 2026

Financial reporting for the year ending
March 31, 2026

By the end of May, 2026

Dates of Book Closure

August 22, 2025 to August 28, 2025

Record date for Dividend

N.A.

Dividend Payment Date

N.A.

Listing on Stock Exchanges & Payment of
Listing Fees

Your Company’s shares are listed on:
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India
205(A), 2nd floor, Piramal Agastya
Corporate Park, Kamani Junction, LBS
Road, Kurla (West), Mumbai — 400070.

Your Company has paid the annual listing
fee to the exchange.

Stock Code / Symbol

Stock Symbol: KIFCL

Registrars and Transfer Agents

Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd
3A Auckland Place, 7th Floor,
Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata 700 017

Share Transfer System

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of the Listing
Regulations, as amended, transfer of
securiies has been effected only in
dematerialized form with effect from
January 24, 2022. Further, SEBI vide its
circular dated January 25, 2022, mandated
that all service requests for issue of
duplicate certificate, claim from unclaimed
suspense account, renewal / exchange of
securities  certificate, ~ endorsement,
subdivision / splitting / consolidation of




certificate, transmission and transposition
which were allowed in physical form should
be processed in dematerialised form only.

The necessary forms for the above request
are available on the website of the
Company at https://kficl.com/index.html.

Address for Correspondence

5, Gorky Terrace, 2nd Floor, Kolkata -
700017

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

Shares held in Dematerialized form in
NSDL: 1,19,00,400

Share held in Physical form1,01,250

Electronic Clearing Service (ECS)

Members are requested to update their
bank account details with their respective
depository participants (for shares held in
the electronic form) or write to the
Company’s Registrars and Transfer
Agents (for shares held in the physical
form, if any)

Investor Complaints to be addressed to

Registrars and Transfer Agents or
Company Secretary, at the addresses
mentioned earlier

Details of Suspension of Securities from
trading, if any

Not applicable

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange
risk and hedging activities

The Company does not have commodity
price risk.

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity
along with any revisions thereto during the

relevant financial year, for all debt
instruments of such entity or any fixed
deposit programme or any scheme or
proposal of the listed entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether in India or
abroad

Not applicable, as the Company did not
issue any debt instruments or any fixed
deposit programme or any scheme or
proposal involving mobilization of funds, in
India or abroad.

Disclosure of certain type of agreements
binding listed entities as per clause 5A of
paragraph A of Part A of Schedule Il of the
Listing regulations

There are no agreement impacting
management or control of the Company or
imposing any restriction or create any
liability upon the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Date: 16.05.2025
Place:

Chand Ratan Modi //{f\iam,e\\;\
Managing Director /2~ B\
DIN: 00343685
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DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR ON CODE OF CONDUCT AS REQUIRED
BY SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, | hereby declare that all the Directors of the Board and
Senior Management Personnel of Kamini Finance and Investment Co. Ltd (the ‘Company’) have affirmed,
compliance with provisions of the applicable Code of Conduct of the Company during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025.

For Kamini Finance and Investment Company Ltd

:——f-:\._.&\\i:—;,iﬁ- J_:"‘L"‘Jtt\’

Chand Ratan Modi
Managing Director
DIN: 00343685

Date: 16.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




JOINT CERTIFICATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule Il Part B of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

We, Chand Ratan Modi, Managing Director and Ms. Kirti Modi, Chief Financial Officer certify that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

() These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact nor
contain statements that might be misleading.

(i) These statements present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls, we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal controls, if any, of which we
are aware and the steps that we have taken to rectify the identified deficiencies.

We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit
Committee:

Significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

Significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and

Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

For Kamini Finance and Investment Company Ltd M W

Mo

-/c:::::\—jkv\-\.»\ i
Chand Ratan Modi eS{y » Kirti Modi
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00343685 f : ‘ PAN: AOYPM1210L

Date: 16.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




S. MANDAL & CO. 29D , SEVEN TANKS LANE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DUM DUM JN.
KOLKATA -700 030
Phone :  2556-6768
2546-3269
Fax : (033) 2546-3269
E-Mail : S mondal co@yahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD.
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of KAMINI FINANCE
AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD. (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income/(expense), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of Material Accounting
policy Information and other explanatory information (“the Financial Statements™).In our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March 2025, and its loss and other comprehensive expense, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most $ignificance
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 1

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.
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Serial Key Audit

Auditor’s Response

No. Matter
i Valuation of We have assessed the procedure of sale and purchase of
Investment investments including year end valuation. We have obtained all
sources of documents for valuation of unquoted shares and its
subsequent sale.
2 Revenue We have reviewed the procedure of revenue recognition in relation

Recognition and
Provision for

to interest income. No income has been recorded for NPA assets.
The loans which have become NPA, necessary provisions are

doubtful debts made in the books.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and -
Analysis, the Board’s report including annexure to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholders information, but does not include the standalone Financial Statements and our

Auditors Report thereon.

Our opinion on Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements ,our responsibility is to read
the Other Information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or other information obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information; we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. '

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 1nclud1ng any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 7T
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) The observations on financial transactions do not reveal any matters which have any
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure-B.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts due which were required to be transfe,ﬁaé tq\he Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. Vs
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iv.

V.

Vi.

(. C. Dev)
Partner
Membership No. 050190

UDIN: 550501908+ 0PKR 5355

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c). Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)
and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For S. MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No. 314188E)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 16" May,2025
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ANNEXURE - “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Kamini Finance And Investment Company Ltd. of
even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course
of audit, we state that:

. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all
PPE are verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our
opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not revalued its PPE during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at 31st March 2025 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 as amended in
2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of providing loans and does not have any physical
inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to it.

(b) During the year, the Company has not availed any working capital limit from Banks or
Financial Institutions on the basis of security of Loans.

iii. (a) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to it.

(b) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under
provisions of RBI Act, 1934. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees, provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

() The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under
provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with
provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the lpaome,_&ecogmtlon Asset Classification
and Provisioning Norms, monitors repayments of principal and.payment of interest by its
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customers as stipulated. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and in cases where
repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance
thereof is taken by the Company. According to the information and explanation made
available to us, reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

(d) The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules
made  thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules,
particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors
and report total amount overdue including principal and/or payment of interest by its
customers for more than 90 days. In cases where repayment of principal and payment of
interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company.
According to the information and explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are
taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

(e) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to it.

(f) Based on our audit procedures, according to the information and explanation made
available to us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during
the year.

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, made investments or provided guarantees in contravention of provisions of
Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186(1) of
the Act; the other provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from public during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at
March 31, 2025 and hence the provisions of the paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company;

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues relating to
amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services
Tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31
March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come
across any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,

1961 (43 of 1961). o
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ix. (@) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings to financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(d) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its associate. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint
ventures.

X. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way
of public offer during the current financial year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made preferential
allotment of equity shares during the year.

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT -
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(XV) ofthe Order is.not applicable to
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the Company and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and the Company has obtained the required registration.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid
CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (‘CIC ") as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year covered by our audit.

xviii. During the year, no change in statutory auditors of the Company have taken place.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, along with details provided in Note 28 to the Financial statements which
describe the maturity analysis of assets & liabilities other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the company during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable.

xxi.The Company is not required to prepare any Consolidated Financial Statement,
accordingly Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For SMANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s Registration No. 314188E

(H.C. Dey
Partner

Membership No. 050190
UDIN: R5050190BHOOKRE 355

Place: Kolkata
Date: 16" May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - ‘B’ TO AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KAMINI FINANCE AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Director of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Contd.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that-

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For S.MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 314188E

(H.C.DEY)
Partner
Membership No.: 050190

.2 505619084 0OKRSZ 55

Kolkata
Date: 16" May, 2025
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KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

CIN NO - L65929A51986PLC002518
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

( Rs. in '000")
N As at As at
P ATkl Mote No. | 5ysiMarch, 2025 31st March, 2024
ASSETS
(1)|Financial Assets
(a)|Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 69 240
(b)|Bank Balance other than (a) above 3 - -
(c)|Derivative Financial Instruments - -
(d)|Receivables
(I) Trade Receivables - -
() Other Receivables - -
(e)|Loans 4 1,590 1,590
(f) [Investments 5 43,618 © 43,618
(g)|Other Financial Assets 6 - -
(2)[Non-Financial Assets
(a)|Inventories 8 47,121 47,121
(b)|Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 416 416
(c) |Property, Plant and Equipment 17 1,514 1,514
(d) | Capital Work-in-Progress
(e)|Other Intangible Assets
(f) |Other Non-Financial Assets 7 98,839 97,841
TOTAL ASSETS 1,93,167 1,92,340
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
A) INONCURRENT LIABILITIES
(1)|Financial Liabilities
(a) [ Derivative Financial Instruments -
(b)|Payables
(I)Trade Payables 10 654 580
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises e s
and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than ) )
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(c)|Debt Securities -
(d)|Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 11 1,32,630 1,21,718
(e)|Subordinated Liabilities 4
(f) |Other Financial Liabilities 12 16,077 15,766
(2)|Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) |Provisions 13 600 600
(b) | Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) -
(c)|Other Non-Financial Liabilities 14 2,387 11,177
(3)|Equity
(a) |Equity Share Capital 15 1,20,017 1,20,017
(b) |Other Equity 16 (79,198) (77,518)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,93,167 1,92,340

Material Accounting Policy Information and Notes to 1 to 36
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. A/ WE’ '
S W (=~ W%

For S. MANDAL & CO. Chand Ratan Modi Chanchal Rungta
Chartered Accountants Director Director

ICAIl Firm Registration No. 314188E 00343685 07590027

.

. v@“
HC DEY
(Partner) Risbh Kumar Singhi
Membership No: 050190 (Company Secretary)

UDIN:25050(90 6»“-{00&’)?5356’

Place : Kolkata
Dated: 16th May, 2025



KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN NO - L65929A51986PLC002518
Profit & Loss Statement as at 31st March, 2025

( Rs. in '000°)
. Note Year ended Year ended
Pasiculars No. 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Revenue from Operations
) |interest Income 18 4 -
(i) | Dividend Income 2 il
(i) | Rental Income - -
(v) |others ) 999
() |Total Revenue from Operations t 1,001
(I) |Other Income 19 176 1,088
(mn Total Income (I+l1) 176 2089
Expenses
(i) |Finance Costs 20 347 375
(i) |Purchase of stock in trade 25 - -
(iii) |Impairment on Financial Instruments (net) 24 - (124)
(iv) |Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock--in-trade and work-in- 25 - 0
(v) |Employee Benefits Expenses 21 988 728
(vi) |Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expense 2 P
(vii) [Administrative and Other Expenses 22 520 4,478
(IV) [Total Expenses (IV) 1,856 5,457
(V) |Profit before Exceptional ltems & Tax (lll- IV) (1,679) (3,368)
(VI) |Exceptional items
(V) |Profit Before Tax (V-VI) (1,679) (3,368)
(VINl) | Tax Expense:
(a) Current Tax - -
(b) Deferred Tax - -
(c) Income tax for earlier years - -
(IX) [Profit After Tax (VII-VIII) (1,679) (3,368)
(X) |Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)
A)(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss - 27)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement - 7
of Profit & Loss
B)(i) Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Statement of
Profit & Loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income/{Expense) (X) (20)
(XI) |Total Comprehensive Income/{Expense) for the period (IX+X) (1,679) (3,388)
(Xll) |Earnings per Equity share (Basic and Diluted) (in Rs) 23 (0.14) (0.28)
(Par Value Rs 10/- per Equity Share)
1to 36

Material Accounting Policy information and Notes to Financial Statements.
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

R T el
Chand Ratan Modi
Director
00343685

Kornche’ ‘g”ﬁ@‘

Chanchal Rungta
Director
07590027

For S. MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 314188E

s W <
y ol
HC DE W p
(Partner) Kirti Modi Risbh Kumar Singhi
Membership No: 050190 (Company Secretary)

uom:,?g‘ago/qoéﬁ-m@/\"}? 5355

Place : Kolkata
Dated: 16th May, 2025




KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

CIN NO - L65929AS51986PLC002518

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2025

{ Rs. in "000')

Year ended 31st March, Year ended
2025 31st March, 2024
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (1,679) (3,368)
Adjustments for :
Net unrealised fair value (gain) / loss
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Liabilities No Longer Required written back
Impairment on Financial Instruments - (124)
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expense -
Taxation for earlier years - 315
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category -
Operating profit before working capital changes {1,679) (3,177)
Changes in Working Capital
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables and Others assets (998) (7.634)
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans Assets & 49,606
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables and Others Liabilities (8,405) (22,597)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Bank Balances
Cash Generated / (used) in operations {11,083) 16,198
Direct Taxes Paid (net of refund) - -
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operating Activities (11,083) 16,198
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, and Intangible Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments (Other than Subsidiaries) - 3,837
(Increase) / Decrease of Investments in Subsidiaries - -
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Investing Activities - 3,837
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of Debt securities (including subordinated debt securities) (net) - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Working Capital facilities (net)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Borrowings (net) 10,912 (20,509)
Dividend Paid (including Corporate Dividend Tax)
Corporate Dividend Tax Paid
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities 10,912 (20,509)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (171) (475)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 240 715
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (refer Note No. 2) 69 240
Components of cash and cash equivalents: Year endezdog‘: st March, 315Ytel\:;rec[:?ez%z4
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
(a) Cash on hand 28 99
(b) Balances with Banks - in Current Account 42 141
(c) Fixed Deposits with original maturity period less than three months - -
(d)Balances in ATM - -
(c) Cheques on Hand - -
69 240

Explanations:

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

2. Previous year figures have been rearranged/ regrouped wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For S. MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

C’:\&A\\*h\&'ﬂm@“‘—‘& ~ “ﬁf" ch a/

Chand Ratan Modi

egstration No. 314188E

Chanchal Rungta

Director Director

00343685 07580027
(Partner) 3 W .
Membership No: 050150 j W - Wr‘-
o 2554190 BHOR KR 535 T &
Place : Kolkata Kirti Modi Risbh Kumar Singhi
Dated: 16th May, 2025 (CFO) {Company Secretary)
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Note -1 Material Accounting Policy Information

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

1.

Background Information
KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED referred to as (“The Company™) is a non-banking financial company (NBFC)
registered with the Reserve Bank of India under the category of Loan Company.

The company’s activities primarily comprises of investing in listed and unlisted equity shares and in mutual funds. The Company also lends money with
or without security. The shares of company are listed on the Metropolitan Stock Exchange.

The standalone financial statements of the Company as on 3 Ist March, 2025 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period as explained in accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), unless otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management of the Company to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures including disclosures of contingent assets
and contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of: impairment of financial instruments, provisions and contingent liabilities.

(I) Significant Accounting policies

(a) Financial Instruments

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the cashflows of the financial assets and the Company’s business model for managing financial
assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.
The Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on
observable factors such as:

- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key
management personnel

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the way those
risks are managed

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected)

- The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s original expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.

Initial recognition
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and deposits are recognised on the trade date 1.e. when a Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans, debt securities and depeosits are recognised when the funds are transferred to the
customers account. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual cash flows are classified
in this-eaeBdRt-Subsequently these are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method less any impairment losses.

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTO.
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Equity Instruments at FVOCI

These include financial assets that are equity instruments as defined in Ind AS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and are not held for trading and
where the Company’s management has elected to irrevocably designated the same as Equity instruments at FVOCT upon initial recognition. Subsequently,
these are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive the payment has been established.

Fair value through Profit and loss account
Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other Financial Liabilities

These are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

Derecognition of Financial assets and Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that is at amortized cost or fair value through OCIL. Loss
allowance in respect of financial assets is measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses and is calculated as the difference between their
carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition. Financial liabilities are never

reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in 2023-24 & 2024-25 and until the year ended March
31, 2025.

(b) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or received).
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the quoted bid
prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques
include discounted cash flow method and other valuation models.

(¢) Investment in subsidiaries and associates
The company has chosen to carry the Investments in associates and subsidiaries at cost less impairment, if any in the separate financial statements.

(d) Foreign currency transactions and translation

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (Rs), which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation
currency for the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation or settlement of monetary items are included in the
statement of profit and loss for the period.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

(f) Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation / amortisation. Cost includes all
expenses incidental to the acquisition of the Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.

(g) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Leasehold improvements include all expenditure A,;N IN] FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.

incurred on the leasehold premises that have future economic benefits. Land 1s not depreciated.

KAMINI FINANCE & INVES MENT&U.LTD.
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(h) Impairment of non - financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting period to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of
impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss,
if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which impairment takes place.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, however
subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior accounting periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as
salaries, performance incentives, etc., are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which
the employee renders the related service.

(i) Accounting for provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, which is
expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured
on a discounted basis. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:
(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that
it will accept certain responsibilities, and

(b) as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities Contingent
liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

(k) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when
they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income-tax is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws, enacted or substantially enacted
as at the balance sheet date.

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Standalone statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and laws, enacted or substantially enacted as of the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on
deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as an income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

(L) Recognition of Dividend and Interest income

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally
when the shareholders or Board of Directors approve the dividend.

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost,
debt instrument measured at FVOCI and debt instruments designated at FVTPL. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking ‘R‘Wﬁf!’ﬁﬂ ;F?rlvqlﬁ:mjﬁ(gr gemw g]saf(msgtmnrfeﬁvndf?sﬁ that

are an integral part of the EIR.
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(M) Finance costs

Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities
other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows.

¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assets.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognised as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortised over the expected life
using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, rating fee etc,
provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

(N)AIl other income and expenses
All other income and expense are recognised in the period they occur.

(O) Dividends on ordinary shares

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity shareholders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the Companies Act, 2013 final dividend is authorised when it is approved by the
sharcholders and interim dividend is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

(P) Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there is no separate reportable segment.

Pursuant to Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements, as the Company has only one
geographical segment and no other separate reportable business segment.

(Q)Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(R) Cash flow Statement
Cash flows are reported under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS 7 on “Statement of Cash Flows, whereby net profit after tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature, tax and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows are prepared for

the operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.
KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

2, Cash and Cash Equivalents ( Rs. in '000")

5 As at As at
P 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Cash in hand 28 99
Balances with Banks - in Current Account 42 141
Cheques on Hand - -
Total 69 240
3. Other Bank Balances (Rs. in '000%)
Particulars ek Be st

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Temporary Overdraft
Fixed Deposits with banks having
original maturity of more than 3 = 2
months
Total - -

KAMIN!I FINANCF 2 INVECTACMNT P LT
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KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31st March, 2025

Note : 5.Investments (Rs. in "000")
o Particulars As at 315t March, 2025 A5 at 35t March, 2024
1 [ Invetsment in Equity Instruments Face Value | No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
(a) Quoted (Fully Paid Up)
OCL Iron and Steel Limited 1 5,00,000 925 5,00,000 925
Reliance Defence and Offshore Engineering Co. Ltd 10 19,300 44 19,300 44
(Formaly known as Pipavav Defence and Offshore Engineering Co. Ltd) 5,19,300 969 5,19,300 969
(b) Share Warrants (Convertible
OCL Iron and Steel Limited 1 50,00,000 7,500 50,00,000 7,500
50,00,000 7,500 50,00,000 7,500
Ay Face Value [_No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Megha Conclave Private Limited 10 28,000 280 28,000 280
Intouch Trading Private Limited 10 401,545 24,093 401,545 24,093
N.K.Concrete Creation Pvt Ltd 10 599,743 5997 599,743 5,997
Buzzard Grihoshova Pvt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Mistletoe Realty Pvt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,600 10
Berkelium House Builders Pyt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Cuckoo Nirman Pvt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Thombill Griho Pvt Ltd i 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Kashpool Abashon Pvt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Grasshopper Niketan Pvt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Pakshiraj Niketan Pvt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Godhuli Kunjaloy Pvt Ltd 10 1,000 10 1,000 10
Booster Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Excellent Dealtrade Pvt. Lid. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Dove Barter Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Kelvin Commotrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Dove Commodeal Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Kelvin Tie Up Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Dove Tie Up Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Kelvin Tracom Pt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Parichay Commosales Pvt. Ltd 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Shivhari Tie Up Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Dove Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Dove Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Kelvin Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 10 1.800 18 1,800 18
Kelvin Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Moneyfold Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Moneyfold Vfintrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,300 18
Parichay Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Shivhari Tracom Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Shivhari Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Keshel House Builders Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Kamondor Builders Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Hytone Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Intimate Commosales Pvt. Ltd. 10 1.800 18 1,800 18
Intimate Dealtrade Pvi. Ltd 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Keystar Suppliers Pvt. Ltd 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Keystar Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Pears Tracom Pwt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Everfast Merchants Put. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Everfast Tradecomm Pwt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Glaze Merchants Put. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Unicon Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Sunbeam Vintrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Sunbeam Tie Up Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Signature Tradelinks Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Snowfall Dealers Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Signature Merchants Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Seabird Commodeal Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Ridhi Merchants Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Carnation Vanijya Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1.700 17
Dhanvantari Merchants Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Ridhi Dealers Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Regal Dealcomm Pt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Parag Vintrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Panther Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Ontime Distributors Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
bal b/f 10 11,17,188 31,249 11,17.188 31,249
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Nole : 5.Investment:
ﬁl; Particulars As al 31st March, 2025 As al 31st March, 2024
Face Value |__No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

bal c/f 10 11,17,188 31,249 11,17,188 31,249
Majestic Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Krish Dealcom Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Inspiration Commercial Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Hopewell Vinimay Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Hopewell Commercial Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Hilltop Suppliers Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Hamsafar Dealcomm Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Heritage Dealtrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Moondhar Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Mridul Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Nissan Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Parag Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Pears Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Nissan Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Popstar Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Popstar Vinimay Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Prantik Vinimay Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Popstar Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Pushkar Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Rasraj Commotrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Ratnakar Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Transways Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Transways Dealtrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Vista Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Acyumen Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Acyumen Tie Up Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Anchor Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Nandlal Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Citywings Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Delta Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Dreamvalley Tie Up Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Guidance Tradecomm Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Hilton Tie Up Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Escort Tie Up Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Escort Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Escort Vinimay Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Janhit Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Jhilmil Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Kannan Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Jaldham Barter Pt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Agrim Commodeal Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Cindrella Tradecomm Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Dreamlight Barter Pyt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Dreamlight Commotrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 18 1,600 16
Everlink Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Everlink Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Fresh Commotrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 186
Fresh Vinimay Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Fresh Vintrade Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Goodview Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Hamsafar Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Indivar Barter Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Bela Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Fort Commasales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Indigo Dealmark Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Indigo Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Hilton Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,700 17 1,700 17
Moondhar Tracom Pt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Manmohan Tracom Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Escort Dealmark Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Starmark Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 1,600 16 1,600 16
Hytone Commosales Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Hytone Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18
Hytone Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 10 1,800 18 1,800 18

bal b/f 10 12,21,088 32,288 12,21,088 32,288

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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Nole : 5.Investments

SL Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Face Value [_No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
bal c/f 10 12,21,088 32,288 12,21,088 32,288
Sittella Infrastructure Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Sandgrousers Land Developers Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Quetzal Housing Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Pardalote Grihanirman Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Grebe Housing Put Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Cassowaries Griho Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Greygone Housing Put Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Kakapo Grihonirman Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Stork Hi Rise Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Asparagus Grihonirman Pvt Lid 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Emu Developers Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 185 1,500 15
Catkins Attalika Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Caramel Grihashobha Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Manakin Developers Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 5
Grosbeaks Nirman Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Custard Grihi Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Tinamou Developers Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Cichlid Housing Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Keshel Infrastructure Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Vireo Housing Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Oriole Housing Pyt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Salamander Niketan Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Shiuli Kunjosobha Pt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Tapaculo Grihanirman Pvt Ltd 10 1,500 15 1,500 15
Deccan Traders Pvt Ltd 10 2,50,000 2,500 2,50,000 2,500
15,07,088 35,148 15,07,088 35,148
Total 70,26,388 43,618 70,26,388 43,618

Sl. Particulars

No Book Value Market Value | Book Value | Market Value
Aggregate Value of Unqouted Equity Shares 42,648 42,648 42,648 42,648
Aggregate Value of Quoted Equity Shares 4,467 969 4,467 969

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

6. Other Financial Assets

(Rs. in *000")

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Interest accrued but not due
Income accrued but not due
Loans to employees
Security deposits

To Related Parties

To Others

Total

7. Other Non-Financial Assets

{ Rs. in '000")

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Advances Against Capital Contracts 86,541 86,541
Employee Advances = L]
Advance to Vendors for Operating Expenses - -
Advance to Related Parties - .
Advance Rent - =
Balances with Government Authorities * - -
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -
Other Receivables 12,298 11,300
Prepaid expenses = _
Total 98,839 97,841
* represents balance lying with Revenue Authorities
8. Inventories ( Rs. in "000%)
5 As at As at
Particul

e 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Stock - in - Trade 47,121 47,121
Total 47,121 47,121

i

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

9. Deferred Tax Assets / (Deferred Tax Liability) (Net)

_ { Rs. in '000")
Recognised/ Recogmsefﬂ
A 3 (reversed) in
Particiilies s at (reversed) in Other As at
1st April, 2024 | Statement of . 31st March, 2025
Comprehensive
Profit & Loss
Income
Financial Assets and Liabilities at FVOCI 416 = 7 416
Receivables, Financial Assets and Liabilities at Amortised
Cost - - -
Other Timing Differences - - - -
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 416 - - 416
( Rs. in '000")
Recognised/ Recogmsefﬂ
s (reversed) in
Particulare As at (reversed) in Other As at
1st April, 2023 Statement of 2 31st March, 2024
Comprehensive
Profit & Loss
Income
Financial Assets and Liabilities at FVOCI 409 7 416
Receivables, Financial Assets and Liabilities at Amortised
Cost - - - 2
Other Timing Differences - - - -
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 409 - 7 416
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note : 10 Trade Payables
Trade Payables ageing
schedule: As at 31st

March.2025
( Rs. in '000")
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME
(ii) Others 222 174 - 258 654
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Trade Payables ageing
schedule: As at 31st
March,2024
( Rs. in '000')
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME
{ii) Others 303 4 40 196 580
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

11. Long Term Borrowings (Rs. in 000"
: As at 31st March, As at 31st
SI. No. Particulars 2025 March, 2024

1 Unsecured 1,32,630 1,21,718

1,32,630 1,21,718

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

12. Other Financial Liabilities

(Rs. in '000")

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings

16,077

15,766

Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings*
Interest Accrued but not due on Others - -
Unpaid Dividends - -
Unpaid Matured Deposits and Interest Accrued thereon - -
Total 16,077 15,766
* the company has not provided interest on borrowing from the party with which borrowing is interest free.
13. Provisions ( Rs. in '000")

: As at As at

Panis il 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Taxation 600 600
Total 600 600
14. Other Non-financial liabilities (Rs. in '000")

g As at As at

ATl 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Sundry liabilities (Interest Capitalisation) Account
Temporary Overdraft - -
Statutory Liabilities* - 58
Others 2,387 11,119
Total 2,387 11,177

* Represents TDS deducted and payable.

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTOD.
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

15. Equity Share Capital

( Rs. in '000")
b As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Particulars
No. of Shares Rs No. of Shares Rs

Authorised
Sultyteres; R Al P palus 1.20,10,000 1,20,100 1,20.10,000 1,20,100
per share

1,20,100 1,20,100
Issued and subscribed
f,f‘:r‘g Sheres. B - baryalfer 120,01,650]  1,20,016.50 1.20,01,650 1,20,016.50
Fully Paid-up
EaunySaras. B 105 Paryiloe be 1,20,01,650 1,20,017 1,20,01,650 1,20,017
share

1,20,017 1,20,017

15.1 Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares outstanding
The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the corresponding amount thereof, as at the Balance
Sheet date is set out below:

( Rs. in '000')
. As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Equity Shares
No. of Shares Rs No. of Shares Rs
At the beginning of the year 1,20,01,650 1,20,016.50 1,20,01,650 1,20,017
Add: Issued during the year
At the end of the year 1,20,01,650 1,20,017 1,20,01,650 1,20,017

15.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of each class of shares
The Company’s authorised capital consists of classes of shares, referred to as Equity Shares and Rs 10/- each . Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

15.3 Shares allotted as fully paid-up without payment being received in cash/by way of bonus shares (during 5
years preceding 31st March, 2025)

The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash/ by way of bonus shares since 2015-
16.

15.4 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares each, are set out below:

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Reame,of (e ahiarohokinrs No. of Shares hof | No.of Shares | % of Shareholding
Shareholding
Hotahoti Wood Products Ltd 17,37,000 14.47 17,37,000 12.47
NorthCasien Fublishing & 16,09,100 13.41 16,09,100 13.41
Advertising Company

Sudhir Jain 10,42,300 8.68 10,42,300 8.68

GUENOhUF FRAEHnGI; rIvite 13,55,800 11.30 13,55,800 11.30
Limited

Maurya T[a_"'_“g Company 22,58,500 18.82 22,58,500 18.82
imited

Total 80,02,700 66.68 80,02,700 66.68
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KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

16. Other Equity

(Rs. in'000")

Particulars

As at

31st March,
2025

As at

31st March,

2024

Special Reserve (pursuant to Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank

of India Act, 1934)
Opening balance

Add: Transfer from retained earnings

Closing balance

457

457

457

457

Income Tax Special Reserve (created pursuant to Section
36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

Opening balance
Add: Transfer from retained earnings

Closing balance

Capital Reserve
Opening balance

Closing balance

Securities Premium Reserve
Opening balance

Closing balance

Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening balance

Add: Transfer from retained earnings

Less: Transfer to retained earnings, on repayment of
Bond/Debenture

Closing balance

General Reserve
Opening balance

Closing balance

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance

Add: Additions during the year

Less: Transfer to retained earnings (net of tax)

Closing baiance

(1,480)

(1,459)
(20)

(1,480)

(1,480)

Retained Earnings

Opening balance

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)
Add:Income Tax adjustment for Earlier years
Add: MAT Credit Entitlement of earlier years
Add! Less: Appropriations

Transferred to Special Reserve

Corporate dividend tax

Total appropriations

Closing balance

(76,496)
(1,679)

(73,443)
(3,368)

315

(78,1?5)

(76,496)

Total

79 198‘)

2 1
X

(77,518)
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(i) Special Reserve:

Transfer of 20% of the profit after tax before re-measurement adjustments on ftransition to Ind AS, if any, to the statutory reserves in
accordance with the provision of Section 45-IC of the REI Act, 1934.

The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to Special Reserve is as follows:

No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the Company except for the purpose as may be specified by the RBI
from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to the RBI within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal. RE|
may, in any particular case and for sufficient cause being shown, extend the period of twenty one days by such further period as it thinks fit
or condone any delay in making such report.

(i) Income Tax Special Reserve:

This reserve has been created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any withdrawal from same will be taxable as per
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. ‘

{iii) Capital Reserve:

This reserve represents capital investment subsidy received and amount forefeited towards warrant subscription.
P p

(iv) Securities Premium:

This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

{v) Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve:

In accordance with Rule 18(7)(b)(ii) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 read with Section 71{4) of the Companies Act, 2013
the Company has created DRR only for redemption of public issue of Non-Convertible debentures (NCDs).

(vi) General Reserve:

This reserve include amount transferred from net profit as per provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and Reserves created on
Amalgamation.

(vii) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income:
This Reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the changes in Fair Value of Equity Instruments measured at Fair

Value through Other Comprehensive Income, net of amounts reclassified, if any, to Retained Earnings when those instruments are
disposed off.

(viii} Retained Earnings:

This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company. This can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. : KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT 0. 17D

W : ‘/Aﬂ’/fy —_— A T H'J‘C)L‘—-

b i) /@puﬁ’@

4\



KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

17. .Fmpeny, Plant and ( Rs. in '000")
Equipment
Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Depreciation/ Amortisation and Impairment NE; Can:‘ing
mou
As at Disposals As at As at Depreciation/ Disposals As at Aot
1st April, |Additio| andother |31stMarch,| 1st April, | amortisation | Impairmen | and other | 31st March, 31st March, 2025
2024 ns | Adjustments 2025 2024 Charge t Charge | Adjustments 2025 bk
Assets for Own use
Property 1,514 - - 1,514 - - - - - 1,514
Total 1,514 - - 1,514 - - - z g 1,514
( Rs. in "000')
Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Depreciation/ Amortisation and Impairment N‘i Garr::ng
moul
As at Disposals As at As at Depreciation/ Disposals As at el
1st April, | Additio| and other |31st March,| 1st April, | amortisation |Impairmen| and other | 31st March, 31st March, 2024
2023 ns | Adjustments 2024 2023 Charge t Charge |Adjustments 2024 2
Assets for Own use
Property 1,514 - - 1,514 - - - - - 1,514
Total 1,514 - - 1,514 - - - . E 1,514

The Company has used the Previous GAAP carrying value as deemed cost lo measure the items of Property, Plant and Equipment as on the date of transition i.e. 1st April,

2018 (Gross Block less: Accumulated Depreciation, as on 1st April, 2018).
KAMIN! FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

18. Interest Income ( Rs. in '000")
For the year ended 31st March, 2025 For the year ended 31st March, 2024
Interest
Income on On On
Financial | Financial | Financial |InterestIncome on
Parti On Financial Assets | On Financial Assets Assets Assets Assets Financial Assets
articulars s % i p.
measured at fair value measured at classified at| measured | measured | classified at fair
through OCI Amortised Cost fair value |at fair value at value through
through through | Amortised profit or loss
profit or Qocl Cost
loss
Interest on Loans* - - - - 2 -
Interest income from investments - - - - -
Interest on deposits with Banks - - - - - -
Other interest Income - - - - - -
Total - - - - 2 -

*the company has provided interest free loan to karni infrastructures & property private limited due to which interest

19. Other Income

( Rs. in "000")

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Net gain/(loss) on ineffective portion of hedges - -
Net gain / (loss) on derecognition of property, plant
and equipment . "
Interest on Income Tax Refund - P
Others - 1,085
Brokerage 176 -
Total 176 1,088

CLT0.
|NVESTMENT CO

K AMINI FINANCE &

— A AT e bteso

.t




KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

20. Finance Costs (Rs. in '000")
2024-2025 2023-2024
On Financial . ;
liabilities. On Financial D';::;ﬂ;;::al
Particulars measured at liabilities .| On Financial liabilities measured at
measured at fair
fair value measured at Amortised Cost
through profit | Amortised Cost value through
profit or loss
orloss
Interest on deposilts - - - -
Interest on borrowings* 345 - 375
Interest on debt securities - - -
Interest on subordinated liabilities ., o 3
Other interest expense 2 - :
Total 347 - 375 -
* the company has not provided interest on borrowing from the party with which borrowing is interest fi
21. Employee Benefits Expenses ( Rs. in '0007)
Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
Salaries and wages 988 728
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
Others (to be specified)
Total 988 728
22. Administrative and Other Expenses { Rs. in '000")
Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
Rent, Taxes and Energy Costs 51 -
Listing Expenses 55 55
Annual Custodial Fees 14 110
Professional Fee 113 258
Miscellaneous Expenses 143 85
Auditor's Fees and Expenses (Refer to Note -22.1) 45 45
Leqal and Professional Charges -
Insurance B
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses -
Travelling & Conveyance -
Other Expenditure -
Bad debt 3,925
Total 520 4,478
22.1 Payments to the Auditor
{Rs. in '000)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-2024
As Auditor - Statutory Audit Fees 30 30
For Cther Services (Certification etc.) 15 15
For Reimbursement of Expenses - .
Total 45 45
23. Earnings Per Share (EPS) - The s and der used to calculate Basic and Diluted EPS
2024-25 2023-2024
Profit after Tax attributable to the Equitvy Shareholders [Rs) {A) (16,79,490) (33,67,720)
Basic and Diluted
(a) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 1,20,01,650 1,20,01,650
(b) Number of Equity Shares issued during the year - -
(c) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 1,20,01,650 1,20,01,650
(d);r'\!eighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the (B) 1,20,01,650 1,20,01,650
(€) Nominal Value of each Equity Share (Rs) 10 10

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share {Rs)

[0.28)
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

24. Impairment on Financial Instruments (net)

( Rs. in '000')

2024

-25

2023-2024

On Financial

On Financial

On Financial

Particulars Intruments Instruments Intriments On Financial Instruments
i measured at .
measured at fair measured at e measured at Amortised Cost
Cl Amortised Cost
value through OCI mortised Cos' through OCI
Loans (refer Note No. 24.1) 0 - 0 (124)
Investments - - - -
Other financial assets - - - -
Total - - - (124)
24.1 Impairment on Loans (Amount in Rs.)
2024-25 2023-2024
On Financial On Financial c;:tr;':::::l
Particulars Intruments Instruments AR On Financial Instruments
measured at fair measured at T vl measured at Amortised Cost
value through OCI Amortised Cost through OCI

Bad Debts written-off (net)

Loss on Assets acquired in satisfaction of
debt

Provision for Impairment

(124)

Total

(124)

i

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

25. Change in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade

(Rs. in '000")
Sl. No. Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 Opening Stock 47,121 47,121

2 Closing Stock 47,121 47121

Total - 0

Purchase of Stock (Rs. in "000')

Sl. No. Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1 Purchase of stock
Total

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.

Glarctal Rerg.
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KAMINI FINANCIAL & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

26. Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base £o as to maintain investor, craditor and market o sustain fu of the business.
The Company has adequate cash and cash equivalents. The company monitors its capital by a careful scrutiny of the cash and cash equivalents, and a regular assessment of any dabt requirements. In the
absence of any debt, the maintenance of debt equity ratio etc. may not be of any relevance to the Company.

27. Events after Reporting date
There have been no avents after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

28. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with current year’s classification / disclosure.
29. Disclosures on financial instruments.
(a) Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does. not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair valua,

{ Rs. in '000")
As at 31st March, 2025
Batiomsr At Fair Value Al Fair Value
‘otal carrying
Amortised cost | Through other . Total fair value
comprehensive T"‘"‘"h'f:;“"“ or: vale Level 1 Levelz | Level3 Total
income

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 69 = 69 & E i . -
Bank Balance other than Cash and| - - i - - - E
L 1.590 - 1,500 B - - .
S8 1,580

Investments - ¥ E

- Equity Shares. 43618 43618 B 43618 g 43,518
Other Financial Assets - - - g N g o 3
Total 45,277 - - 45,277 45,277 43,618 - - 43,618
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 654 654 854
Borrowings (Other than Debt 1,32,630 132630 1,32,630

Securities)

Other Financial Liabilities 16,077 - - 18,077 16,077 - - - -
Total 1,498,361 - = 1,49,361 1,49,361 = = = j

{ Rs. in "000’
As at 31st March, 2024
At Fair Value Fair Value
Particulars Through other Total carrying
Amortised cost i annug':;mm or abiid Total fair value htais tasas Levra o
Income

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 240 - 240 240 - - - -
Bank Balance other than Cash and - - - - - -
Cash Equivalents -

Loans 1590 - 1.590 1590 - - E -
Investments, g g .
- Equity Shares 43618 43818 43818 43,618 - 43618
Other Financial Assets - - - - - - & &
Total 45,448 - - 45448 45,44 43,618 - - 43.618
Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 580 580 580

Borrowings (Other than Debt 1.21.718 121,718 121,718

Securities)

Other Financial Liabilities 15,766 - - 15,766 15,766 - - - -
Total 1.38.064 - - 1.38.064 | 1.38.064 - - - -

KAMINI FINANCGE & |NUESTMENT' CD.SD.
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(b} Measurement of fair values
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below

Level I: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level II: ather techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level llI: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data,
(i) The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance and other financial assets and liabilities approximats their carrying amaunts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

(i) Financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value

(i) The fair values of the equity investment which are quoted, are derived from quoled market prices in active markets. The Investments measured at faif value and falling under fair value hisrarchy Level 3
are valued on the basis of valuation reports provided by external valuers with the exception of certain investments, where cost has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide
rany

of possible fair value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair values within that range_

(€) Measurement of fair values
The Company has not entered into any derivative financial contracts during the current and previous financial years.

(d) Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk: and
- Market risk
The Company has a risk management framework which not only covers the market risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks.

The risk management framework is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk management framework aims to:
(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of interest rate fluctuations on the Company's business plan.
{1i) achieve areater predictability to @arnings by determining the financial value of the expected eamings in advance.

Credit Risk:
Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a counter-party fails to meet its contractual obiigations,

Cash and cash equivalents

The company holds cash and cash equivalents of Rs 69.229 at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs 240,246 J. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management
©on an ongeing basis and is considered to be good

Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always hava
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, undar both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

- all non derivative financial kabilities.

Non Derivative financial liabilities

As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Other Financial | Other Financial
Liabilities Liabilities
2387 177

|

[Carrvina value
Contractual cashflows:
- Less than one year
- Between one o five vears. [ 2387 1A

|- More than five years

Market risk:
Market risk s the risk of loss of future earnings. fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as equity price, interest rates etc.) or in the price of
market risk-sensitve instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. The Company s exposed to market risk primarily refated to the market value of its investments.

Lxposure to interest rate risk :

Since the Company does not have any financial assets or financial liabilties bearing floating interest rates, any change in interest rates at the reporting date would not have any significant impact on the
financial statements of the Company.

Currency risk:

(a) Exposure
The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI .

To manage fts price risk arising from investment in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio,
The maiority of the Company’s equity investments are listed on the Metropoiitian Stock Exchange {MSE) in India.

(e) Disclosure Regarding analytical ratios:

Y 5 Year ended March | Year ended
Raa Numerator Denominatar 31,2025 ‘i
Sharehalder’s K
Debt-equity Total Debt it o 3.25 2.86
NetProfits after | Average
Return on equity taxes - Preforence | Shareholder's (0.01) {0.08)
Dividend (if any)  |Equity
|Return on assets et Profit After Tax_| Total Asaets [ 0.02
{Return on Capital Emplayed EBIT [ Capital Employed (0.01) (0.02)
30. Maturity analvsis of Assets and Liabilities :
3 (Rs. in '000')
[ B2 L As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Particulars Within 12 months | After 12 months Total e | arter 12 months Total
[ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 69 ] 240 240
Bank Balarce other than above - P
Loans 1.590 1.590 1,590 1,500
Investments 43518 43618 43618 43618
Other Financial Assets B i .
i - R
Non-Financial Assets g >
Other Non-Financial Assets. i 98,839 98,839 97.841 97,841
TOTAL ASSETS 69 1,44,047 144,116 240 143,048 1,43,289
LIABILITIES . i
Financial Liabilities ] N
Other Financial Liabilities 18,077 16.077 15.766 15.766
Trade Payables 654.18 654 580 580
Borrawings (Other than Debt 1.32,630 1,32,630 121,718 121,718
Securities)
Non-Financial Liabilities - & 0
Other Non-Financial Liabilties 2,387 11,177 1
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 15174{(‘1“”“ L g[_‘[ﬁﬁ}fﬁﬁrMENT CU, L .
’ (\—_—,_,_\--—-\\:“:,\._ iy o
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|31.TITLE DEEDS OF IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES NOT HELD IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY
The Company doss not posses any immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company
during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

32. DETAILS OF BENAMI PROPERTY HELD
No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the comy

pany for halding any benami property under the Benami Transaction (prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thersunder in the financial year

endad March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

33. The Campany has not been declared as a willful defauiter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in the financial years ended March 31,2025
and March 31, 2024,

34. Relationship with struck off companies : The Company does not have any relationship with stuck off companies.

35. Registration of charges or with i of C
There were no reqistration of charges or satisfaction with Reqistrar of Compani

KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the half year ended 31st March, 2025

36 List of Related Parties and Relationship
Name of the Related Party Relationship

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury
Mr. Chand Ratan Modi
Ms. Tripty Modi .

Ms. Chanchal Rungta Chieciors & KMF
Mr. Mohit Parakh

Kirti Modi

Risbh Kumar Singhi

North Eastern Publishing & Adv.Co Ltd
Hotahoti Wood Products Ltd 4
Purbanchal Prestressed Ltd

Maurya Trading Co. Ltd |— ENTERPRISES WITH COMMON DIRECTORSHIP
Visisth Chay Vyapar Ltd
Chemo Traders Pvt Ltd

Ram Ratan Modi

N K Concrete Creations Pvt Ltd
Deccan Traders Pt Ltd

Citystar Infrastructures Ltd HTEREST O RELATIVES
Sagittarius Commercial Pvt Ltd
Aquaries commercial Pvt Ltd

Citystar Ganguly Projects LLP 2 DIRECTOR'S INTEREST IN LLP

(Rs. in'000)
Name of the Related Party Nature of Transaction During the Year During the Year

2024-25 2023-24

Risbh Kumar Singhi Salary 789 618
Citystar Infrastructures Ltd Loan Taken 9,450 1,280
Cilystar Infrastructures Ltd Loan Repayment 575 34,627
Citystar Infrastructures Ltd Loan Given - 1,503
Citystar Infrastructures Ltd Interest - =

{ Rs. in '000)
Name of the Related Party Nature of Balance As on Mst March, 2025 | ASOn :3;;“3""‘:
Risbh Kumar Singhi Amount Payable 60 75
North Eastern Publishing & Adv.Co Ltd __|Amount Payable 12 12
Sagittarius Commercial Pvt Ltd Amount Receivable 55 55
Aquaries commercial Pvt Ltd Amount Receivable 55 55
Citystar Infrastructures Ltd |Amount Payable 7372 -
Citystar Infrastructures Ltd Amount Receivable - 1,503

For S. MANDAL & CO. EE
Chartered Accountants ﬂ (}Lo/

FRN:- S Y T R
Chand Ratan Modi Chanchal Rungta
Director Director
HCDEY 00343685 : 07590027
(Partner) I ~
Membegship No: 050190 i e
DN S50 50( OBMODKRE 355 %“Lﬁ N N
Place : Kolkata q Kirti Modi Risbh Kumar Singhi

Dated: 16th May, 2025 (CFQ) {Company Secretary)
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